
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
THIRTY -SECOND SESSION 

Official Records • 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 19th MEETING 

Chairman: Mr. JANKOWITSCH (Austria) 

CONTENTS 

AGENDA ITEM 62: UNITED NATIONS ENVIRONMENT PROGRAMME 

(a) REPORT OF THE GOVERNING COUNCIL 

(b ) REPORTS OF THE SECRE'I'ARY -GENERAL 

(c) UNITED NATIONS COliFERENCE ON DESERTIFICATION 

SECOND COMMITTEE 
19th meeting 

held on 
Mon~,. 17 October 1977 

at 3 p.m. 
New York 

AGENDA IT»i 60: UNITED NATIONS INSTITUTE FOR TRAINING AND RESEARCH: REPORT OF THE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

• This tecord is subject to correc tion. Cortections should be incorporated in a copy of 
the record and should be sent within one week of tht date of publication to the Chid, 
Official Records Editing Section, room A -3550. 

Corrections will be issued shortly after the end of the session, in a separate fascicle for 
each Committee. 

77-57181 

Dis tr. GENERAL 

A/C. 2/32/SR.l9 
19 Oct~ber 1977 

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH 

/ ... 



A/C.2/32/SR.l9 
i!nglish 
Page 2 

The meeting was called to order at 3.15 p.m. 

AGENDA ITEM UNITED l'TATIO:JS EiiJVIRONMEII!T PROGRM1ME (A/32/3 and Add.l (Part II)~ 
A/32/25; A/32/137" A/32/156, ~/32/159, A/32/189, A/32/228, A/32/257, A/32/260) 

(a) REPORT OF THE GOVERNIHG :OUNCIL 

(b) REPORTS OF TH:6 SECRETARY-GENERAL 

(c) UlHTED NATIONS CONFERENC.~ Oiif DESERTIFICATION 

l. Mr. TOLBA (Executive Dir=ctor, United :Nations Environment Programme)~ 
introducing the report of the Governing Council (A/32/25) 3 said that the Council 
had decided at its fifth sessLon to agree on 21 goals to be met by UNEP by 1982. 
The goals fell within the framework of the policy decisions concerning the new 
international economic order :md of the forthcoming exercise of formulating the 
neH international development strategy. They were specific and indicative of the 
projected impact of the Envir,)nment Programme as a whole. 

2. The Council had been mm:-e of the importance of setting up the goals in such a 
manner that their implementation could be clearly evaluated. Steps had been taken 
to draw up work plans showing how the goals might be implemented. To that 
multidisciplinary task forces had been established as part of the process of 
reorganizing the Bureau of th<~ Prograrmne. That multidisciplinary approach should be 
reflected at the level of formulation and implementation of speci programmes by 
the United Nations system as >'l. whole. Accordingly, since the first round of joint 
programming exercises with ea·~h concerned member of the system had been concluded, 
the emphasis was being shifted to the prograrmning of specific subjects of interest 
to more than one member of th'~ system. The Environment Co-ordination Board would 
shortly be considering initia-~ing thematic joint programming on water) arid lands> 
includine: desertification, awl environment education and training. In each area 
special emphasis would be giv1:n to implementing the recommendations of recent 
international conferences. The Governing Council had approved the Environment 
Co~ordination Board 1 s analysin of its purposes and ways of working, including a 
definition of its functions and proposals to ensure more efficient co-ordination. 
It had stressed the importanc1: of strengthening regional co~operation in 
environmental activities and 1ras assisting in establishing environmental 
co-ordination units vTithin th<= regional commissions. 

3. Bearing in mind that the goals set by the Governing Council were for the year 
1982, it was significant that the Council had decided that the first quinquennial 
review of the state of the en"ironment should be produced for that year. It was 
also significant that the Exe<~utive Director had been authorized to alert the world 
to possible serious threats to the environment. UNEP's role would include 
identifying alternative, less harmful courses of action. 

I . .. 



A/C.2/32/SR.l9 
English 
Page 3 

(Mr. Tolba) 

4. The new target :for voluntary contributions to the Fund o:f UHEP had been set 
at ~.150 million :for the :follm.Ting :four years, The Council attached special 
sie;ni:ficance to a broad base :for voluntary contributions. He there:fore to 
GovE-rnnents which had not contributed to the Fund in the :first :five years and those 
which could a:f:ford to make a more substantial contribution to do so. 

5. The Council had endorsed his suggestion on a thorough analysis o:f the 
status o:f Fund-supported projects. The analysis had revealed that, while some 
areas showed prot';ress, others had not advanced beyond the stage o:f experts' 
meet and interim reports. Although a simplistic view o:f the Fund's catalytic 
rolE: >vould have UNEP employ a small amount o:f resources to attract larger :financial 
supi'ort) the analysis had also revealed that in several :fields the level o:f 
contributions :from co~operat agencies had not matched the value o:f UNEP's 
mobilization o:f the experience and memory bank o:f the agency concerned. 

6. The and contributions on hand :for the United Nations Habitat and 
Human Settlements Foundation i-rere clearly inadequate for continued development of 
the programmes mandated by the General Assembly in resolution 3327 (XXIX). The 
GovErning Council had therefore invited the Assembly to set a target for 
voluntary contributions to the Foundation for the period 1978~1981, taldng into 
acccunt the Executive Director's proposal of :/;50 million, and to consider 
convening a pledging conference in 1978 if the target was not met. The Assembly 
would also be considering authoriz the Foundation to borrow money from 
GovE·rnments and financial institutions in order to carry out its mandate of 
seec capital to developing countries. 

7. The first meeting of the iWrldng group on environmental law, set up 
punuant to decision (V) of the Governing Council, had been held in Geneva at 
the end of The Group had decided to study further the ect of liability 
for pollution and other environmental damage and compensation for such damage? 
and had selected offshore mining and drilling the limits of national 
jurisdiction as a priority ect for the period 1977~1979. The Council had 
extended the mandate of the Intergovernnental vJorking Group of Experts on nahrral 
resc>urces shared by t1vo or more States. The \·forking Group had con:firmed the 
com ensus reached in January on :four princ and guidelines and had reached a 
com ens us on more principles and guidelines but much remained to be done. He 
was consulting all Governments for their views on the feasibility and desirability 
of an intergovernmental meeting to discuss the problem of the material 
remr.ants of wars, particularly mines) and their effect on the environment, 

S. He hoped that the new :format of the document on international conventions 
(A/:::2/156) was satisfactory to the Committee. 

9. The observations made by the Corr~ittee for Progra~e and Co~ordination at its 
seventeenth session in connexion vith its detailed study of environment had been 
constructive and useful. 

10. The Council vas a specific decision by the General Assembly on the 
sub,1ect of a permanent headquarters for UNEP. In that connexion, he drew attention 

I . .. 



A/C.2/32/SR.l9 
English 
Page 4 

(Mr. Tolba) 

to the report by the Secretary-General on United Nations accommodation in Nairobi 
(A/C.5/32/19) which contained full details of UNEP's accommodation requirements. 

11. The commitment of the lnited Nations system to achieving a new internatioDal 
economic order and framing the objectives for the new international development 
strategy was an important ccntext for the environment programme. Environmental 
problems were not caused by industrialization alone; poverty could also lead to 
environmental degradation. Economic development was therefore essential to the 
protection and enhancement c•f the man-made and natural environment. For much of 
the world, the question was what kind of development was needed< Clearly, 
development should not destroy the ozone barrier or bring about destructive climatic 
change. 'I'he concept of outE~r limits was being studied in greater depth. Some 
early conclusions -vrere that outer limits were not necessarily static norms and that 
outer limits might be reachE!d in particular places much sooner than a global study 
of outer limits might indicate. A case in point was the process of the conversion 
of marginal land into deser1;. It was obvious that the basic human needs of the 
world 1 s population had to b,; met in order to prevent further environmental 
degradation and to avert negative cycles in which the capacity to meet those needs 
was increasingly jeopardize1l as resources were exhausted. However meeting basic 
needs without thought to th•: environmental consequences might also have 
disastrous effects. 

12. Economic development, ~he major source of change, had to be harnessed to 
protect the environment. I:1 advancing the concept of environmentally sound, 
sustainable development, UN~P was not claiming that there was an environmentally 
sound way to proceed in all situations. Its concept of environmentally sound 
technologies ranged fr.om no1-polluting technologies,, through technologies in which 
inevitable pollution was mi4imized, to the development of new technologies or the 
adaptation of existing ones. 'Ihe lessons were applicable to both developing 
countries and developed ones. 

13. The 1980s should be seen as a period in which population growth, the 
persistence of widespread poverty and pressures for rapid economic growth and for 
the maintenance of highly resource-intensive life-styles vTould bring increasing 
pressures on the quality of the human environment in general. The third 
international development strategy should therefore become a component of all~round 
constructive co~operation among all countries in evolving patterns of development 
and life~styles that would ensure the well~being of exi generations and those 
to come. Universal concerr. for the protection and improvement of the human 
environment could provide <:. unifying perspective to the new international economic 
order and promote the satiEfaction of basic human needs for all. 

AGENDA ITEM 60: lJrJI'I'ED NArc'IONS INSTITUTE FOR TRAINING AJ\fD RESEARCH: REPORT OF 
THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (A/~:2/14) 

14. Mr. HICOL (Executive Director, United Nations Institute for Training and 
Research), introducing mn~'AR 1 s report (A/32/14) o pointed out that it covered the 
period from l July 1976-0ctober 1977, and thus covered the summer months during 
which the Institute conducted many activities in other continents. 

I ... 



A/C.2/32/SR.l9 
English 
Page 5 

(Hr. Nicol) 

'l'he Institute is vrork reflected the recommendations of the sixth and seventh 
special sessions of the General Assembly. A exan1ple of that orientation 
had been the seminar for young diplomats on the nev international economic order 
and multilateral diplomacy in June ~ details of \·rhich appeared in paragraph 30 
of the report. s were made to hold a second seminar on the same 
lines. U~HTAH 1ras also carrying out a research pro,:;ramne, in with 
'iexican scholars, on obstacles -· economic o political and technical - to the 

of the Declaration and PrograrrJllle of Action, the :CstablisbJnent of the 
I:eu International Lcono::n.ic Order and the Charter of Economic Ric:hts and Duties of 
States. Another or research scheme, partly funded by tl::e Ford Foundation, dealt 
\vi tb the institutional side of the neu international economic order, including a 
co;nparative of decisi procedures in such economically oriented bodies 
as the General Assenbly, Ci'TCTAD, the Conference on International I'conomic 

and the Assistance Con11llitt of OECD. It uas 
the resultant monoGraphs -uould not only analyse the s of various 
und techniques for resolvine; conflicts on contentious issues 
the possible future of multilateral econoL:ic institutions. 

but 1vould also discuss 

16, lJ.LTITPJ\ endeavoured to give a thoroue;h trainine; and research background to 
diplomats about tlle main issues that had been debated in recent years in the United 
t·'ations. In vieu of tl1e ii'lportant role of economic and social affairs, it had 
sponsored, in conjunction -:Tith the Economic Institute of the vrorld Bank, 
a three-veek seminar on the technical issues of economic for menbers of 

with those subjects. request of heads 
and a:t·1basscJ:lors o seminars uere also held on ed :·:at ions 

ces and financial adninistration. 

UrTITPJ1 1·Tas also concerned -vri th 
a co~1ference in Austria on natural 

or issues of the It had orc:anized 
,U";"J and [;as 0 details of Hhi ch appeared in 

9! and. of the report. 'I'he 50 papers submitted by s from all 
over the uorld had been book form and t~1e conference had received >.'ride 

and countries. A follmr-up 
se:j1inar on energy 1-ras planned. '!:'he conference on alternative strategies desert 

and , referred to in 100 of the report, had been 
orc:anized in collaboration -vri th the state of California \·ritn the 
assistance of the United l-fations Development , the United ~:fations 
:Snvironraer:t an.d the Office of Technical Co-operation) and the papers had 
subsequently been made available for the U:T:C? conferenc on ci_esertification. TlJ.e 

re exercise vas an of the collaboration betvreen UI·HTII_;_--=( and 
other of the United Nations system. 

18. As 
study on 

the Press 

1 s -vrork on the 
abroad 
title 

n drain--, the nultinational comprehensive 
returned bein~ shed 

the year 
That 1ras one of the nine 
and articles) vrhich 

rtment . rrhat 
international 
inawsurated \-rhereby 

uas concentrat more and 
zations and tl2eir increased effectiveness, and_ a scheme had. been 
all research carried out at the Institute \-ras used in seminars. 

I . .. 



A/C.2/32/SR.l9 
English 
Pae;e 6 

(Mr. Nicol) 

19. There -vrere two categories of seminars: training sessions and meetings 
bringing together experts, f.enior diplomats and Secretariat members to discuss 
points of major interest to the Organization. There had been 33 training programmes 
ranging in duration from t-vro days to five months, which had been attended by 
700 participants from 135 llE~mber States - a 46 per cent increase on the previous 
year. The vast majority of participants came from Asia> Africa and Latin America, 
but the Institute had been ~:;ratified to note the presence of more representatives 
from developed countries: interaction between developed and developing countries 
was an important ingredient and mixed groups from different regicns were organized 
into a single unit in simulfction exercises in order to familiarize participants 
with each other 1 s point of Yiew. Hith regard to international lavr, a United 
Nations-UNITAR refresher course in Bangladesh (A/32/14, para. 35) had been well 
attended by lawyers from thE~ region, and an increasing n'\.illlber of fellowship courses 
were being held at the HaguE~ Academy of International Lmv; future joint courses -vrere 
being planned. 

20. He wished to make special mention of the colloquium on "Women and decision
making in the United Nationf:n, held at the invitation of the Austrian Government 
and attended by senior officials of the Secretariat and 14 other organizations of 
the United Nations system. Statistics collected by the Institute showed that there 
had been little progress since UNITAR had reviewed the matter in 1972: indeed, 
unless the percentage of "\Willen in the professional and higher categories in the 
United Nations system as a vhole increased more rapidly than during the previous 
five years, it would take oYer 100 years for them to achieve equality, in spite of 
the Assembly's call for an E~quitable balance between men and women at the higher 
levels by the end of 1980. The colloquium had agreed on the need for more women in 
policy-making organs as a mE~ans of helping 1vorld development. It had adopted a 
number of recommendations on practical measures, which it had sent to the 
appropriate bodies and had urged that an attempt should be made to reach the target 
of a 30 per cent representation of women in the professional and higher categories 
in the United Nations system by the end of 1980. However, much depended upon 
Member States putting forward women as candidates for international staff posts as 
well as for national policy-·making bodies. 

21. VTi th regard to the mee";ings of directors of United Nations training, planning 
and research institutes ('\/:;2/14, paras. 127-132), he hoped that the Assembly 1vould 
accede to the request to exi.end participation to cover Institutes founded since the 
annual meetings had been inaugurated - in particular, the number of institutes in 
Asia had risen during the previous three years. Hith regard to the United Nations 
University, he was happy to report that there had been more co-operation durin8 the 
previous year: the Vice-Rec:tor of the University had attended the conference on 
11Africa and the problematique of the Future" and the meeting of the UNITAR Governing 
Board. There was also active co-operation with the University on a project in 
Geneva. 

22. Turning to the funding of UNITAR activities, he said that more financial 
assistance was urgently required. The Institute had not received an endowment, as 

I ... 



A/C.2/32/SR. 
English 

7 

(Mr. l'Jicol) 

had been hoped, on its establishment and 1-ras dependent on annual contributions from 
I~Iember States and special-purpose grants. Only one third of the membership of the 
United Nations made contributions, although there vlere some ne\·l contributors, 
including Sierra Leone, and other States had made increased contributions, 
particularly the United States. Similarly, the Institute had received several 
generous grants over the year from the Suedish Authority for International 
Development. Hm-rever, UNITAR' s position compared poorly with that of the ILO 
Training Institute Hhich had a comparable budget of $2.5 million. Thirty per cent 
of that Institute's budget was contributed by the ILO itself which also provided 
grants for work done at its request. In addition, 5 to 10 per cent of its incone 
crune from an endowment fund. It would not be a difficult matter for the United 
li!ations to cover the comparatively small Uli!ITAR budget - a. course of action 1-rhich 
would relieve the staff of fund-raising vrork and ensure the progress of an 
orr;anization which was essential to the United Nations. Hhen, a fevr weeks 
previously, he had opened the customary seminar for new delegates to the General 
Assembly, attended on that occasion by over 150 participants, he had been conscious 
of the privilege of contribut to the Hark of the United Nations. 

23. Tne CHAIRMAN suggested that the deadline for the sutmission of proposals under 
agenda item 60 should be Friday, 21 October. 

It was so decided. 

25. i'1r. ALGARD (NorHay) welcomed the concentration of UNITAR's research and 
studies on problems connected vlith the establish.ment of a ne1-r international 
economic order. The research programme should be action-oriented, coherent and 
multidisciplinary; its consolidation in the three main areas outlined on page 10 
of document A/32/14 would provide a valuable input for the preparation of a nev 
de1relopment strategy. The training programmes, seminars and programmes relating 
to ad hoc conferences contributed to greater efficiency in United Nations working 
procedures. 

26" Government financing by means o:f special-purpose grants or funds 
endanger the cohesion of the research programme. For that reason the General 
Assembly should evaluate the existing system of financing and consider having at 
least part of UNITAR's activities financed from the regular budget. 

27. He announced that, subject to Parliamentary approval, his country's 
contribution to UNITAR for 1978 would amount to 400,000 ~Jorwegian kroner, an 
in<~rease of 50,000 kroner over its 1977 contribution. 

28. I1r. QUEllTIN (Italy) said that UlUTAR's unique training courses 'lvere of 
enormous practical benefits to diplomats. 

29. In his delegation's view, all United Nations research activities should 
in~reasingly be delegated to the Institute. In particular, UITIT.~'s research in the 
field of energy should be continued and expanded \.ri th a to providing 

/ ... 



A/C.2/32 .19 

(Nr. Quentin, Italy) 

definitive, objective concluslons regarding the level of exi 
to the international community. 

natural resources 

30. UNITAR was also the most appropriate body for providing delegations with 
information concerning the lnited Nations. It would be useful for delegations to 
be kept informed through an ad hoc publication on the mandate, scope and 
composition of the various intergovernmental and expert organs of the United 
Nations, with specific reference to arrangements vlithin groups for agreed rotation 
schemes. 

31. In conclusion, he said that, its limited resources, UNITAR should 
concentrate on a limited nur:.ber of specific essential activities connected with 
major themes of global iete1·est, such as the Project on the Future, 

Fr. JODAHL (Sweden) \.Jelcomed the fact that UNITAR vras focusing its attention 
on tl:e issues and problems related to the establishment of a new internat 
economic order; he trusted i hat that tendency imuld be continued and strengthened. 
'I'he 1~raining programme, icularly the courses for members of permanent missions, 
the seminars on United Natic·ns conferences and the training of diplomats and 
advisers from developing countries, were an important contribution in that respect. 
Training programmes organizE:d by special request should be limited to icipants 
from developing countries and be connected >vi th the work of the United Nations 

el!l. 

33. The research programme should be directed increasingly towards the problems 
relating to the establishment of the new international economic order, and the 
paramount criterion for the selection of nevi projects should be their 
relevance to that issue. 

34. In view of the limited resources available to it, the Institute should further 
concentrate its activities and increase the interrelationship betvreen research 
projects. In icular ~ h:.s delegation questioned the validity of new projects 
in the area of peace and se<:urity, since the resources of the United Nations 
Secretariat in the fields o' disarmament had been strengthened. 

As the Executive Direc~or had pointed out in his report, the Institute 'iras 
the only United Nations organization with a mandate to conduct high-level research 
related to the functioning 1)f the United Nations system. As far as was 
within the framework of the new international economic order, UIUTAR 1 s research 
activities should be linked to the political work of the United Nations in such 
a way as to encourage the f·)rmulation of specific proposals to improve the 
functioning of the United N1.tions and its specialized agencies. 

36. He noted satisfacion that despite limited resources, the Project on the 
Future was gaining momentum. Most on the future vrere centred on the 
problems of industrial soci , while the UNITAR project was, rightly, directed to 
breaking down global future studies to a regional level, giving priority to the 
neglected problems of the t1ird world. Valuable work had also been done on energy, 

/ ... 



environment, global models and regional planning. 
held in Dakar, for which his country had made a 
extremely useful. The Swedish authorities were 

A/C.2/32/SR.l9 
English 
Page 9 

(Mr. Jodahl, Sweden) 

The seminar on planning 
contribution, had been 

favourable cons ion to 
a request for further funds for a follow-up to that seminar. 

37. His also supported efforts to increase the disseminat of the 
wor:~ of UNITAR to the international COI!h'llunity. 

38. Given the valuable contribution it made to the United Nations 
contributions to the Institute's regular programme should be increased. 
Furthermore, those activities constituted 
system should be financed from the United Nations 
that his country would raise its contribution for 
25 ~er cent to 500,000 Swedish crowns. 

ces to the United Nations 
budget. He announced 

the fiscal year 1977/78 by 

39. HONG (Singapore) commended UIUTAR on its success in carrying out, despite 
limitations, a full programme of seminars, training courses and 

research activities on a broad range of issues that were especially inent to 
the United Nations. Its was invaluable for the promotion of a new 
int8rnational economic order and the training of junior professionals. In research, 
UNITAR concentrated on three areas, namely, international organization, peace 
and security, and development and international economics. Important conferences 
and seminars had been organized on subjects such as energy and alternative 
str~tegies for desert development and management. 

40. The fact that UNITAR's achievements were not more widely recognized was 
probably due to inadequate publicity and to the fact that it was financed 
by voluntary contributions. Furthermore, the time and effort that the staff devoted 
to raising funds could be better used in pursuit of the stated goals of the 
Institute. The United Nations should share in the expenses of programmes such as 
the junior professional programme and the studies on the new international 
economic order, which were of interest to the entire United Nations system. 
He urged the Institute to endeavour to give w·ider publicity to its and, 
in addition to its long-term research work, to undertake short-term studies on 
topical issues with a view to ding timely supportive information of direct 
relevance to ongoing discussions and negotiations on such issues as the 
restructuring of the economic and social sectors of the United Nations, the 
implementation of the Development Strategy for the Second Development Decade and 
the establishment of the new international economic order. However, the 
expectations placed in UNITAR must be reflected in an awareness of the need for the 
United Nations to provide financial support for its work. 

The meeting rose at .4.50 p.m. 




